
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 

Wednesday, 7th July, 2021 
6.30 pm 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Audit and Standards Committee DATE - 7-07-21 Page 2 of 3 

 

 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 

Wednesday, 7th July, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
Members are reminded that if they have detailed questions on individual 
reports, they are advised to contact the report authors in advance of the 
meeting. 
 
Members of the public may ask a question, make a statement, or present a 
petition relating to any agenda item or any matter falling within the remit of the 
committee. 
 
Notice in writing of the subject matter must be given to the Head of Legal & 
Democracy by 5.00pm on the day before the meeting.  Forms can be obtained 
for this purpose from the reception desk at Burnley Town Hall or the Contact 
Centre, Parker Lane, Burnley.  Forms are also available on the Council’s 
website https://bit.ly/2BWX7d2  
 
Whilst we have returned to holding meetings in person we have limited space 
for members of the public to attend due to Public Health guidance.  Should you 
wish to attend you are advised to contact democracy@burnley.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1) Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2) Minutes  5 - 14 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting.  

3) Additional Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, 
by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

4) Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to any item 
on the agenda, in accordance with the provisions of the Code of Conduct. 

 

5) Exclusion of the Public   

 To determine during which items, if any, the public are to be excluded 
from the meeting. 

 

6) Public Question Time   

https://bit.ly/2BWX7d2


 

Audit and Standards Committee DATE - 7-07-21 Page 3 of 3 

 To consider questions, statements or petitions from Members of the 
Public. 

 

PUBLIC ITEMS 
 

 

7) External Auditors Progress Report  15 - 42 

 To consider an External Auditors Progress Report.  

8) Internal Audit Opinion 2020-21  43 - 52 

 To consider a report on the Internal Audit Opinion 2020-21.  

9) Annual Governance Statement 2020-21  53 - 64 

 To consider a report on the Annual Governance Statement 2020-21  

10) Strategic Risk Register 2021-22  65 - 84 

 To consider a report on the Strategic Risk Register 2021-22  

11) Work Programme 2021-22  85 - 86 

 To consider the Work Programme for the current year.  
 
MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEE  
 

 

Councillors 
 

 

Councillor Lord Wajid Khan of Burnley 
(Chair) 
Councillor Howard Baker (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Charlie Briggs 
Councillor Paul Campbell 
Councillor Phil Chamberlain 

Councillor Tom Commis 
Councillor Beatrice Foster 
Councillor Asif Raja 
Councillor Andy Wight 

 
Co-opted Members 
 

External Auditor 

Councillor Kathryn Haworth, Habergham 
Eaves Parish Council 
Councillor Gill Smith, Cliviger Parish 
Council 
Stuart Arnfield 

Chloe Edwards, Grant Thornton 
Helen Stevenson, Grant Thornton-External 
Auditor 
Georgia Jones, Grant Thornton-External 
Auditors 

  
Published: Tuesday, 29 June 2021 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 1 of 9 
 

 

 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
THE MEETING WAS A REMOTE MEETING HELD IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS UNDER 
SECTION 78 OF THE CORONAVIRUS ACT 2020. 
 
Wednesday, 24th March, 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

 
 

PRESENT  
 

 

MEMBERS  

 S Hussain, (Vice-Chair) In the Chair 
 

 Councillors S Graham, B Brindle, T Commis, M Lishman, L Mehanna and 
A Tatchell 

 
OFFICERS   
 Howard Hamilton-Smith  Head of Finance and Property 
 Catherine Waudby  Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 Amy Johnson 

Ian Evenett 
Salma Hussain 

 Finance Manager 

 Internal Audit Manager 

 Auditor 
 Chris Gay  Governance Manager 
 Christine Wood 

Paul Barlow 
 Democracy Officer 

 Stream 
 

CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 

 

 Louise Gaskell  
 

EXTERNAL 
AUDITORS 

Barrie Morris, Grant 
Thornton 
Helen Stevenson, Grant 
Thornton 
 

 

   
 
 
 

85. Apologies  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Paul Campbell and Stuart Arnfield.  Councillor 
Shah Hussain took the Chair. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 2 of 9 
 

86. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the previous remote meeting held on Wednesday, 13th January 2021 were 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

87. Additional Items of Business  

 
There were no additional items of business. 
 

88. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

89. Exclusion of the Public  

 
There were no agenda items requiring members of the public to be excluded from the 
meeting. 
 

90. Public Question Time  

 
The Committee was advised that no public questions had been received. 
 

91. External Auditor`s findings report.  

 
The Committee was advised that this item had been removed from the agenda as details 
were included within agenda item 9. 
 

92. Annual Governance Statement 2019/20  

 
Salma Hussain, Auditor presented the Annual Governance Statement to the Committee 
requesting approval. 
 
Salma advised that the Accounts and Audit and Regulations 2015 stated that the Annual 
Governance Statement must be approved by a Committee and that this responsibility was 
undertaken by the Audit and Standards Committee under their terms of reference, as those 
charged with governance. 
 
The Committee was advised that production of an Annual Governance Statement was a 
statutory requirement of the Council, and that it was produced in accordance with proper 
practice, using guidance from CIPFA, (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) and SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives). 
 
The Committee was further advised that all Heads of Service and key officers had provided 
signed Assurance Statement to the Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Executive in 
accordance with the organisational management structure and that these had been 
supported by a control and risk self-assessment questionnaire.  The Chief Operating Officer 
had considered his statement and also signed an Assurance Statement to the Chief 
Executive. 

Page 6



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 3 of 9 
 

 
It was reported that All Executive Members and the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee had 
completed a self-assessment questionnaire and provided a signed Assurance Statement to 
the Leader of the Council. 
 
It was further reported that the strategic partner, Liberata had also submitted a Certificate of 
Assurance covering services they provide on behalf of Burnley Borough Council and that no 
issues were reported. 
 
The Committee was advised that this process allowed the identification of the key elements 
of governance and internal control for incorporation into the Annual Governance Statement 
and was designed to assist the identification of significant control and governance issues.  
Minor weaknesses in governance had been identified and action to address these issues 
had been put in place. 
 
The Committee was further advised that Management Ream had reviewed the Annual 
Governance Statement and that the statement had then been signed by bot the Leader of 
the Council and the Chief Executive as the final assurance to the public.   
 
The Committee was reminded that the Annual Governance Statement had been reported to 
a meeting of the Committee and approved in July 2020 and that the signatures had been 
updated again and presented alongside the externally audited Statement of Accounts 
2019/20. 
  
IT WAS AGREED 
 
That the Audit and Standards Committee approve the Annual Governance Statement 
2019/20 as attached to the report at Appendix A. 
 

93. Audit Findings report 2019/20 and Statement of Accounts  

 
The Head of Finance and Property submitted a report to: 
 
1. Present the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts for 2019/20, to obtain formal 

approval of the Committee to the audited accounts, and to recommend and request that 
they be signed by the Chair of the Committee; and 

 
2. To request the Audit and Standards Committee to approve the Letter of Representation 

from the Head of Finance and Property to Grant Thornton (external auditors) and to 
recommend and request that it be signed by the Chair of the Committee; and 

 
3. To inform the Audit and Standards Committee of the audit findings. 
 
Grounds for the above recommendations and requests were outlined within the report. 
 
The Committee was reminded that it had been a challenging year, due to various factors 
such as remote working, staff vacancies and redeployment of staff for covid related work.  
As a result of these pressures, deadlines had not been met for publication of accounts.   
 

Page 7



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 4 of 9 
 

It was reported that the external audit has been concluded by Grant Thornton who were 
satisfied that the accounts presented a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position.  
The accounts were attached to the report at appendix 1 for information. 
 
It was further reported that there had been five recommendations for the Council which 
were detailed in the report along with the proposed actions to mitigate the 
recommendations. 
 
The Head of Finance and Property advised that as the Accountable Chief Finance Officer, 
he was required to make representation about a range of issues upon which confidence is 
placed during the audit to obtain favourable opinion from Grant Thornton.  A copy of the 
Letter of representation to Grant Thornton that the Committee was being requested to 
approve, for the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, was attached to 
the report at appendix 2 for information.  
 
Barrie Morris gave a brief introduction to the Audit Findings report, advising that the audit 
was near completion and conclusion and opinion were anticipated within the following 
couple of days.  Barrie also referred to the impact of covid and the significant impact on 
delivery of the audit which had resulted in the original deadline date of 30th November 2020 
not being possible to be met. There had also been a further agreed target date of 24th 
March 2021.   
 
Barrie advised that the pandemic had exposed significant capacity challenges within the 
Council.  He also advised that the Finance team had worked extremely hard and diligently 
to respond to audit queries effectively and in a timely manner.  He recognised that the team 
had also faced many additional challenges. 
 
Barrie further referred to the 5-month delay from the original deadline stating that it was a 
serious issue and advised that consideration had been given to making adjustments to the 
VFM conclusion, to reflect that there may be capacity constraints within the Finance team. 
He also advised that this option had been considered by the partner panel within the firm.  
The partner panel had agreed against this course of action as it had been recognised that 
the Finance team had worked diligently, proactively and because the challenges faced had 
been outside the control of the Finance team.  The panel had concluded that such an option 
would not be an appropriate, to give a fair reflection of the efforts of the team.   
 
The Committee was advised that the work on the financial statements would lead to an 
unqualified conclusion and that several amendments to financial statements had been 
identified (as covered by Helen).  The VFM commentary and conclusion would also be 
unqualified.  There had not been a requirement to exercise statutory duties on the financial 
statements.  
 
Barrie advised that there were increased expectations by regulators who expected 
significantly more work on areas of evaluation of property plant equipment and pension 
revaluations.    This work would continue over the year including work on management 
overrider controls, journals and management estimates. 
 
Helen Stevenson advised of the overview of the scope of the Audit and of the significant 
audit risks, findings and other issues.   Helen also advised of details of the action plan 
including recommendations. 
 

Page 8



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 5 of 9 
 

Barrie advised the Committee of the increased final proposed Audit fees as detailed on 
page 209 of the report.  Barrie reported that the increase proposed fee reflected the 
additional costs that had been incurred due to Covid-19 and remote working and additional 
costs incurred due to the delay of the account preparation.  The final proposed fee was 
£62,720. 
 
The following points and responses were made: 
 
Louise Gaskell – Referred to the Significant findings and in particular to Provisions for Non-
Domestic Rate Appeals “The provision has increased slightly by £6,436k in 2018/19”.  
Louise queried the amount of £6,436k as this was not a slight increase.   
 
The Head of Finance and Property agreed that this figure appeared to be high and agreed 
that he would investigate this and confirm the accurate figure. (Update, the figure should 
have read £6.436k) 
 
Louise Gaskell – Significant delay in accounts to Auditors.  Has this been seen in other 
Local Authorities or is this specific to Burnley Council? 
 
Barrie Morris – This was seen in a relatively high number of Councils.  Burnley was not the 
worst but did miss the deadlines.   Nationally across all Local Authorities just under 48% 
were signed off by November 2020 deadline. The situation had improved in December, but 
a number remained outstanding to be signed off.  This has had a significant effect on 
commencing work for the 2020/21 audit. 
 
Louise Gaskell – The recommendations within the report that the Auditors have put forward 
to the Council, have they been accepted? 
 
The Head of Finance and Property – Management comments have been put against each 
of the recommendations.  We have accepted the majority.  They will be either be amended 
in 2019 accounts or incorporated into 2020/21 accounts. 
 
Councillor Lishman – Referred to potential capacity gaps in Finance Team and of additional 
work in meeting governments request to provide grants to various businesses and self-
employed persons.  Did you go to Grant Thornton Panel for every other Local Authority 
case?  Was Burnley an exception? 
 
Barrie Morris - Not for all Councils.  Only those with significant delays in production of 
accounts.  There were a small number of Councils in which we took the view to go to Panel.  
We fully accept your observations that the Finance Team were dealing with lots of other 
initiatives.  Statutory reporting is an important function.  If capacity is too constrained, this 
can have potential significant ramifications. 
 
Councillor Lishman – Note comments about knock on effect because work on this year’s 
accounts will be delayed.  When will you be presenting a timetable about how this will be 
met and the impact on the Council if there is a delay? 
 
Barrie Morris - In terms of 2020/21 accounts, there will be a delay.  Planning and interim 
work would have been well underway now.  We will be agreeing a timescale. Getting back 
to the right place will take a couple of years.  At the next meeting there will be a timeline set 
out and agreed with officers regarding the delivery of the 2020/21 Audit.  In my view we will 
not be able to meet the 30th September 2021 revised deadline.  Should the Council be able 

Page 9



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 6 of 9 
 

to demonstrate sufficient capacity and we can match that capacity, we will review that to 
see if we can get back on track. 
 
The Head of Finance and Property referred to item 12 on the agenda Council arrangements 
for 2020/21 which was reporting on deadlines for the next two years.  
 
IT WAS AGREED 
 
1. That the Audit and Standards Committee approve and sign the Statement of 

Accounts; and 
 
2. That the Audit and Standards Committee sign the Letter of Representation; and 
 
3. That the Audit and Standards Committee note the audit findings. 
 
 

As this was a remote meeting, arrangements had been made for the Statement of 
Accounts and Letter of representation to be signed outside of the meeting. 
 

94. Internal Audit Progress Q3 2020-21  

 
Salma Hussain presented a report to the Committee to advise of the work undertaken by 
Internal Audit for the period 1st October to 31st December 2019.  
 
It was reported that from 1st October to 31st December 2020, three audit reports had been 
produced.  Details of two of Burnley Council audits were attached to the report at Appendix 
1. 
 
A comparison of actual and planned audits was also attached to the report at Appendix 2.  
The Committee was advised that a number of audits had started, and to date had been 
completed, but due to timing would form part of later quarter statistics to be reported. 
 
Performance indicators for Internal Audit were reported in the Finance balance scorecard.  
The service currently reported the number of audit reports produced as 12 against an 
annual target of 22 and the percentage of hight-priority actions from audit actions plans 
implemented which was 100% and had a target of 100%. 
 
Also outlined in the report were details of other activity that had been carried out by the 
Audit team in continuing to support the Council`s business continuity response to the 
Coronavirus pandemic. 
 
It was reported that Internal Audit had carried out follow up reviews on previously 
completed audits to review completed actions and had provided advice and assistance to 
various services.   
 
It was further reported that all the data for the National Fraud Initiative for national exercise 
had been submitted and matched had been received.  These had been passed to different 
services for processing and that Audit had been processing payroll and creditor matches.  
Review had been undertaken of the write offs for Quarter 2 and a report issued.  The Audit 
team had also been involved with the Talent Management scheme. 
 

Page 10



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 7 of 9 
 

Interviews for the position of Auditor had recently taken place and the recruitment process 
procedures were currently being carried out. 
 
The Committee was advised that Head of Service were being consulted on the Audit Plan 
for 2021/22. 
 
IT WAS AGREED 
 
That the Internal Audit Progress Report be noted. 
 

95. Strategic Risk Register 2020-21  

 
The Internal Audit Manager presented a report to review and update the Strategic Risk 
Register and to request that the Committee recommend the Strategic Risk Register to the 
Executive. 
 
A copy of the revised Strategic Risk Register was attached to the report with changes 
highlighted within. 
 
The Committee was advised that substantial changes had been made to the register due to 
the strategic objectives of the Council being updated and in addition the risk score had 
been increased in relation to the risk score in the `Failure to respond to widespread illness`, 
previously score 6 amended to score 9.  As the Council had entered the recovery phase, 
the involvement of the Council had increased across a range of areas. 
 
The report advised that one of the consequences of the Financial Instability risk was that 
central government would intervene and take over control of the Authority as had been 
seen recently in authorities with financial problems.  This had been added to the risk. 
 
The Committee was advised that the risk of malicious attack from a national terrorist that 
had been reduced from severe to substantial in February 2021. 
 
Councillor Shah noted the significant high risks in various areas due to the Coronavirus 
pandemic. 
 
It was recommended the Strategic Risk Register be recommended to the Executive to 
ensure that risks are appropriately monitored and recorded and that the register be updated 
for the revised Strategic Objectives. 
 
IT WAS AGREED 
 
1. That the Strategic Risk Register is reviewed and updated as attached; and; 
 
2. That the Committee recommend the Strategic Risk Register to the Executive. 
 

96. Annual Accounts Arrangements 2020-21 and Final Accounts Arrangements 
2021-22  

 
1. The Finance Manager presented a report to update the Committee on the 

arrangements made to date and the implications of the changes required for the 
Council ahead of the closure of the 2020/21 accounts; and 

Page 11



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 8 of 9 
 

 
2. To seek approval for the accounting polies t be used in producing the Statement of 

Accounts as set out in Appendix 1 as attached to the report; and 
 

3. To inform the Committee that a date would be confirmed nearer the time for a final 
accounts workshop for Audit and Standards Committee members to allow officers to 
present the 2020/21 Statement of Accounts and explain the findings and issues; and 

 
4. To inform the Committee that following a recent consultation exercise MHCLG had 

confirmed that the deadline for completion of the draft Statement of Accounts would 
be extended from 31st May 2021 to 31st July 2021 and that the deadline for 
publication of the audit Statement of Accounts would be extended from 31st July 
2021 to 30th September 2021.  This would apply for both 2020/21 and 2021/22 
financial years. 

 
The Committee was recommended to; 
 

1. Note the report and arrangements that the Council was making in advance of the 
closure of the accounts for the year 2020/21; and 

 
2. Approve the proposed accounting policies to be followed in producing the Statement 

of Accounts as attached to the report at Appendix 1. 
 
Grounds for the above recommendations were outlined within the report. 
 
The Committee recognised and thanked the Finance Department for the report and for their 
hard work during this very difficult period. 
 
IT WAS AGREED 
 
1. That the Committee note the report and the arrangements that the Council is making 

in advance of the closure of the accounts for the year 2020/21; and 
 
2. That the Committee approve the proposed accounting policies to be followed in 

producing the Statement of Accounts as attached to the report at Appendix 1. 
 

97. Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - Corporate Policy  

 
The Head of Legal and Democracy presented a report for the Committee to consider the 
revised Corporate Policy for Covert Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources 
under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. (RIPA) a copy of which was 
attached to the report. 
 
The Committee was reminded that RIPA regulates the Council’s use of covert surveillance 
to prevent and detect criminal activity. 
 
The Committee was advised that the Council’s Policy for the use of Covert Surveillance and 
Covert Intelligence Sources had been provided to the Investigatory Powers Commissioner’s 
Office (IPCO) during the latest assessment which had taken place in March 2020.   
 

Page 12



 

 
Audit and Standards Committee 24/03/2021  Page 9 of 9 
 

The Committee was further advised that the report of IPCO had made recommendations to 
further strengthen compliance with legislation.  The recommendations had included revising 
the Policy to include examples of the types of matters the Council may come across and 
strengthening the policy in relation to use of social media.  Regular staff training on RIPA 
had also been recommended. 
 
It was reported that the review of the Policy had been completed and it had been updated 
to reflect changes in the organisation and generally.  The section on the use of social media 
had been expanded to explain situations where RIPA may be engaged.  The Policy had 
also introduced the concept of a non-RIPA authorisation.  It was clarified that this was to be 
used in cases where RIPA is not engaged as the activity carried out by the Council is not 
strictly covert because the premises have been previously warned of a visit for a test 
purchase or where covert surveillance is undertaken but it is not in pursuance of the 
investigation of crime. 
 
It was further reported that training on the revised Policy was proposed to ensure that 
offices in the Council understood the obligation under RIPA and the wider circumstances 
where a non-RIPA type authorisation should be sought. 
 
The Head of Legal and Democracy advised that the recommendation to the Committee had 
been amended since publication of the agenda and was now recommending that the 
Committee recommend approval of the revised Policy to the Executive. 
 
IT WAS AGREED 
 
That the Audit and Standards Committee recommend approval of the revised Corporate 
Policy for Covert Surveillance and Covert Human Intelligence Sources under the Regulation 
of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 to the Executive. 
 
 

98. Work Program 2020-21  

 
The work programme was noted. 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•
.

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

More 
meaningful 
and timely 
reporting

Maximising 
the value 

from 
auditor’s 

work

More 
freedom to 
reflect local 

context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

P
age 31



P
age 32



Lessons from recent 
Public Interest Reports

June 2021

P
age 33



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

Contents

2

Section Page

Summary 03

Summary continued 04

Culture 05

Council leadership 06

A question of degree 07

A question of degree continued 08

Recommendations 09

P
age 34



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

2020 will be remembered as a tumultuous year in local government. The COVID-19 pandemic highlighted four essential factors we probably always knew 
about local government, have often said, but are now much better evidenced:

1. Local government has provided fantastic support to its communities in working with the NHS and other partners to deal with the multifaceted 
challenges of the pandemic. 

2. Britain’s long centralised approach to government has been exposed to some degree in terms of its agility to tailor pandemic responses to regional 
and local bodies. This is recognised by the current government who continue to pursue the options for devolution of powers to local bodies. Track and 
Trace delivered centrally has not been as successful as anticipated and, according to government figures, local interventions have had more impact.

3. ears of reduced funding from central government have exposed the underlying flaws in the local authority business model, with too much reliance on 
generating additional income. 

4. Not all authorities exercise appropriate care with public money; not all authorities exercise appropriate governance; and not all authorities have the 
capability of managing risk, both short and long term. Optimism bias has been baked into too many councils’ medium-term plans.

Summary

3

P
age 35



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

The Public Interest Reports (PIRs) at Nottingham City Council (August 2020), the London Borough of Croydon (October 2020) and Northampton Borough 
Council (January 2021) were the first issued since 2016.  All three are clear illustrations of some of the local government issues identified above. The audit 
reports are comprehensive and wide ranging and a lesson for all local authorities. There are some quotes that seem particularly apposite for all councils to 
consider.

“There has been collective corporate blindness to both the seriousness of the financial position and the urgency with which actions needed to be taken.”   

London Borough of Croydon

Grant Thornton UK LLP -October 2020

“Overall, the governance arrangements were overshadowed by the Council’s determination that the Company should be a success, and this led to 
institutional blindness within the Council as whole to the escalating risks involved, which were ultimately very significant risks to public money.” 

Nottingham City Council

Grant Thornton UK LLP August 2020

“There was inadequate due diligence undertaken by the Director of Finance/Section 151 Officer, including an inadequate assessment of whether the work 
would generate assets capable of being refinanced by NTFC in order to repay the loans to the Council and of the financial viability of NTFC”  

Northampton Borough Council

KPMG LLP January 2021

It is also very pertinent to reflect on what the Best Value Inspection of Northamptonshire in 2018 said in its summary. 

“In Local Government there is no substitute for doing boring really well. Only when you have a solid foundation can you innovate”.

Best Value Inspection by Max Caller CBE – March 2018 

Summary continued

4

P
age 36



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

Culture

The recent PIRs showed that for some councils the culture is not right. Culture must be about 
selflessly following the Nolan Principles in all aspects of political and officer life. These principles are 
set our below.

An open culture encourages challenge and 
criticism, it listens to ideas from opposition 
parties and it holds its leaders and officers to 
account for their actions. This needs to start with 
the political leadership and embed itself 
throughout the organisation. Being willing to 
listen to the perspectives of others is not only 
healthy in a democracy it facilitates better 
decision making. In councils where PIRs were 
issued, auditors   identified aspects of political 
culture that were not receptive to challenge, 
scrutiny or different perspectives. 

5

1. Selflessness

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

2. Integrity

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves, their family or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and
relationships.

3. Objectivity

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and without
discrimination or bias.
4. Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit themselves to the
scrutiny necessary to ensure this.

5. Openness

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information should not be
withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing

6. Honesty

Holders of public office should be truthful.

7. Leadership

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively promote and
robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs

P
age 37



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

Council leadership

In our view, one of the main reasons for the poor outcomes reflected in the recent PIRs was either the 
absence or the ineffective execution of the qualities described above. This led to the pursuit of 
political objectives with no effective scrutiny and challenge.  Auditors have described outcomes which 
have led to:

• Failure to understand the inherent risk around investing in particular markets.

• Failing to understand the crucial need to ensure financial sustainability of existing services before 
embarking on major new projects which brought extra layers of complexity and risk.

• Salutary lessons to councils about conducting appropriate due diligence for investing and lending 
to third parties, however important they are to the local community.

6

P
age 38



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

The era of reduced central government grants, closely followed by the wholly unprecedented and as yet not fully understood post-COVID-19 landscape, is 
testing financial governance arrangements and risk mitigation strategies to breaking point. It is also bringing to light weaknesses in financial decisions that 
may have been made years ago and may otherwise have remained hidden. At an operational level, some of the common early indicators of future 
governance failings that we have seen over the past couple of years include:

• Lack of strategic alignment between financial, operational and political agendas, sometimes linked to a lack of corporate ownership of the medium-
term financial plan and savings commitments. 

• Disharmony or performance issues within the senior management team (or between members and officers) not being dealt with effectively. This 
results in poor co-operation, reinforces silos and in some circumstances can lead to directorates acting as semi-independent fiefdoms within the 
organisation.

• Financial and commercial decisions being made without sufficient transparency and consultation. In some cases, these are driven by trusted 
individuals in circumstances where there is a lack of opportunity for proper scrutiny.

• A lack of understanding of how to manage financial and commercial uncertainty and risk in the medium to long term. This can result in short-term 
financial strategies or, conversely, to overly risky long-term investments.

• Directorates left to develop financial plans and business cases, or manage commercial relationships, without sufficient oversight expertise, capacity, or 
resources. This heightens the risk of poor outcomes.

A question of degree

7

P
age 39



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

• Undue pressure placed on senior managers to set budgets using over-optimistic assumptions. This can allow a ‘balanced budget’ to be superficially 
achieved but the issues inevitably manifest as recurring overspends at year end which councils then struggle to mitigate.

• Gradual loss of financial control as roll forward budgets become increasingly detached from actual activity and overspends are habitually netted off 
against underspends. This can disguise the root causes of directorate cost pressures and prevent them being addressed in a timely and effective way.

• Knowledge of how things really work or why decisions were made, becoming vested in a few key individuals. This makes the council vulnerable if these 
people were to leave or in some cases granting them inappropriate levels of influence.

• Lack of control over financial and operational delivery, including of remedial action plans. This is often due to insufficient oversight or a lack of timely 
and accurate management information, and timely and decisive action taken at corporate or committee level when issues are identified.

• Awareness of the significance of audit recommendations and qualifications and ensuring they are responded to properly and not ignored or side-lined. 

When combined with the more general weaknesses in governance, scrutiny, culture and leadership, these more functional and operational weaknesses 
provide fertile ground for the kind of significant issues we might see in a Public Interest Report.

A question of degree continued

8

P
age 40



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Title | May 2021

Commercial in confidence

So, what can councils do now to root out some of these weaknesses and deal with them before they burst out on their own terms?

• Councils are now required to consider how they measure up against the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) new financial 
management code. This was greeted with some scepticism at first, but many are now seeing its value as a ‘gold standard’ against which arrangements 
can be tested. The code emphasises that financial sustainability is the responsibility of all senior leaders, not just the finance team. Councils progress on 
delivering the Code will be a key part of auditors’ value for money work going forward.

• Councils need to ensure that they are mindful of reserve levels at all times and ensure there is a clear strategy for maintaining adequate reserves. In our 
view this needs to be at least 5% of net General Fund expenditure flexed upwards to consider the macro-economic and local risks the Council faces.

• Internal audit and risk assurance arrangements can be strengthened and emphasised as an asset to the organisation, rather than being side-lined. This 
will involve extra investment in these services but will have long term benefits for the council’s governance. External expert support should also be 
brought in at the right time and councils should open themselves up to a broad range of external perspectives, including benchmarking and LGA peer 
reviews.

• Greater focus on establishing a healthy management culture – starting with the ‘tone from the top’ - that welcomes and encourages challenge rather 
than suppresses dissenting voices. Strong leaders are vital to getting things done, but it can be dangerous to vest too much un-checked influence in 
individuals.

• Look for opportunities to learn from the council’s past experience and that of others. Use this to identify training needs for officers and members and 
make time to address them – common areas include options appraisal, optimism bias and prioritisation.

• Politics will always be there in the background, but council members should strive to work more collegiately, particularly when it comes to making 
strategic decisions with implications that reach many years into the future. Efforts to engender better cross-party co-operation, to improve transparency 
and embrace challenge from a wider cohort of members are likely to reap dividends in the long run, beyond the short-term expediency of decisions 
made behind closed doors.

Recommendations

9

P
age 41



grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context 
requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal 
entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one 
another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 42



ITEM 
NO 

[AgendaItem] 

 

Internal Audit Opinion 2020-21 

 

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 

DATE 07/07/2021 

PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management 

REPORT AUTHOR Howard Hamilton-Smith 

TEL NO 01282 425011 Ext 3162 

EMAIL Hhamilton-smith@burnley.gov.uk 

 
 

PURPOSE 

 
1. To provide members with the Head of Finance and Property as Chief Audit Executive 

(CAE) opinion on the Internal Controls of the Council for financial year 2020-21. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
2. That the Committee considers the opinion. 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
3. To comply with the terms of reference for the Audit and Standards Committee through 

review of the scope and results of work completed by Internal Audit, and, to support and 
maintain the independence and objectivity of the Internal Audit function. 
 

4. To meet the requirements set out in the Public Service Internal Audit Standards and 
CIPFA’s Local Government Application Note. The Annual Audit Opinion supports and 
complements the Annual Governance Statement which is required under the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS 

 
5. Limitation of Opinion 

 
This opinion on the Internal Controls of the council is based on the work undertaken by 
Internal Audit both during 2020/21 and that relates to that year. It provides reasonable but 
not complete assurance concerning the Council’s internal control system. This also takes 
account of actions that have been agreed with Managers to address weaknesses 
identified, and the impact of the pandemic on the Internal Audit service. 
 

6. Overall Opinion 
 
The controls of the Council continue to operate effectively.  These include compliance 
with policy, separation of duties, authorisation, monitoring and internal checks.  Where 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



 

 

during audits control weaknesses have been identified, these have been addressed as 
part of an agreed Action Plan. Compliance with Action Plans is monitored and where 
these have not been implemented, further assurances have been provided by 
management that these issues will be addressed.  
 
In providing this opinion I have had regard for the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
and Public Service Internal Audit Standards and CIPFA’s Local Government Application 
Note. The results of the review of internal audits effectiveness and its quality assurance 
and improvement programme conclude that this work was delivered in compliance with 
the Public Service Internal Audit Standards and CIPFA’s Local Government Application 
Note. 
 

7. Work Completed 
 
Internal Audit has provided to the Audit and Standards Committee summaries of the work 
completed during 2020/21 and these should be considered in relation to this section. 
Appendix 1 contains summaries of the work, opinions and key actions agreed. Additional 
detail on progress against the Audit Plan is provided in Appendix 2. 
 
The Internal Audit has also provided audits and support under a service level agreement 
for Burnley Leisure. 
 

8. Performance 
 
The 2020/21 Internal Audit Plan target for audit reports was 22 and the actual delivered 
was 19. This reduction was due to both the redeployment of Auditor into support for 
COVID 19 activity and a vacant post for part of the year.  
 
Internal Audit have reported the performance of the Service in comparison with its targets 
to the Audit and Standards Committee and Management during the year, the year end 
2020/21 actual performance to targets of implementation of high priority agreed actions is 
at 100%. 
  
 
During the year, a quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP) has been 
maintained. This involves an internal review of the audit work, and management 
questionnaires. The results of the internal review of work are provided to auditors as are 
the actions undertaken during the audit process to correct issues. The results of the 
management questionnaire are discussed with auditors and any actions required are 
agreed. 

 
9. Investigations 

 
Several Council investigations were referred to internal audit during the year, which 9 
were related to Covid related grants and one related to an online service. One 
investigation was completed at the request of the Monitoring Officer. Burnley Leisure was 
supported in an investigation. 

 
10. Other work 

 
I am in the combined role of Chief Audit Executive (CAE) and Section 151 officer. I have 
arrangements which will ensure that the roles do not impact on the continued 

Page 44



 

 

independence of the Internal Audit service. During the financial year I am not aware of 
any actual or perceived conflict of interest in these roles.   
 
The Internal Audit Manager is the Council’s Data Protection Officer and has been 
involved with the Council’s arrangements for improving and maintaining Data Protection 
for the authority.  
 
Work on corporate business continuity continued during the year and risk management 
has been supported. This has been significant during the pandemic to ensure that the 
Council services have been maintained. 
 
Support has been provided during the year to other services in Finance and 
arrangements are in place to ensure that this does not impact on the independence of the 
internal audit service. This included the processing of Business Support grants for Covid 
payments. 
 
The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) has had a national exercise this year, this has required 
the collection, checking and upload of data and the processing of matches.  
 
There was an impact of the Coronavirus pandemic on the Internal Audit work during the 
year, and on the completion of work. Internal Audit are not a priority service and as such 
support was supplied to the Council’s Business Continuity arrangements and supporting 
the organisation for the event. As stated, this has included, business support grants, an 
audit of central government grant for a partner organisation, Lancashire Resilience Forum 
(LRF) death management reporting, test and trace, covid case analysis and reporting, 
and additional LRF group involvement. 
 
It is required that I consider the impact of changes on of resources on my ability to form 
an annual internal audit opinion.  
 

 
11. Compliance with the Public Service Internal Audit Standard and Local Government 

Application Note (PSIAS and LGAN) 
 
During 2020-21 an evaluation of Internal Audit effectiveness took place. This included a 
quality assurance and improvement programme (QAIP), obtaining client feedback and 
audit review, there were no issues to report. 
 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION 

 
12. None 

 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
13. The Annual Internal Audit Opinion is considered as part of the Annual Governance 

Statement, which is part of the Local Code of Corporate Governance 
 
 

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 

Page 45



 

 

 
14. None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
15. None 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION       

PLEASE CONTACT:  Howard Hamilton-Smith Ext 3162 

ALSO: Ian Evenett Ext 7175 

 
 

Page 46



Appendix 1 

Appendix 1 - Summary of Audit reports Issued – 2020/21 
Audit Service  Audit Purpose Audit Opinion Key Actions Agreed Implementation 

Detail 
Score 

Achieve CRM  Information 
Governance  

To review the design and 
operation of the controls in 
place for the Council’s 
customer relationship 
management (CRM) system, 
known as Achieve.  

The system design is 
effective and sound 
controls are in place 
to mitigate the risk of 
error/ misuse. The 
workflows within Achieve 
mean that information 
requirements 
are met without 
unnecessary duplication.  

Management to consider 
exploring further how system 
reporting could be 
strengthened, in conjunction 
with Firmstep.  

December 2020  1  

Personnel 
PIs  

Human 
Resources  

The purpose of the audit was 
to review the accuracy of 
the figures reported for 
the payroll and 
personnel performance 
indicators.   

Performance indicators 
have been clearly defined 
in the contract 
documentation. A 
difference of interpretation 
in calculating the PI’s was 
identified and inaccuracies 
were found with some of 
the figures reported  

Performance will be reported 
based on the results from the 
sample check prior to any 
corrections being made.   

The quarterly average will be 
calculated from the error 
summary sheet taking the 
average of the respective 3 
months.   

The year-end target figure on 
the corporate scorecard will 
agree to the figures stated on 
the contract documentation for 
each PI.  

July 2020  
  
  
  
  
July 2020  
  
  
  
  
  
Immediate  
  
  
  
  

3  

Taxi 
Licensing   

Streetscene  To ensure the taxi licensing 
service is operating 
effectively and that it 
can demonstrate compliance 
with relevant safeguarding 
procedures.   

Comprehensive set of 
procedures in operation for 
the issuing of 
licenses. Appropriate vehicl
e and safeguarding checks 
are in place to ensure public 
safety.  

To consider including the 
explicit requirement to the 
taxi driver’s guidance 
documentation - for drivers 
to ensure they have valid 
insurance and any notifications 
to be made accordingly.   

March 2020 1  

Annual   
Governance 
Statement  

Corporate  To review and report on the 
Councils governance 
arrangement and system of 
internal control for 2019/20  

There were no significant 
issues identified by the 
review  

None  N/A  N/A  

Write Offs for 
2020  

Corporate/  
Finance  

To audit the Council’s write-
off of debts for 2019/20 and 
Q1 2020/21  

N/A  None  N/A  1  

P
age 47



Appendix 1 

Appendix 1 - Summary of Audit reports Issued – 2020/21 
Audit Service  Audit Purpose Audit Opinion Key Actions Agreed Implementation 

Detail 
Score 

Charity 
Accounts – 
Mayors 
Charity  

Corporate  To provide an independent 
review to Charity 
Commission requirements.  

There were no significant 
issues identified by the 
review  
  

None  

  

N/A  
  

1  

Charity 
Accounts – 
Acorn Fund  

Corporate  To provide an independent 
review to Charity 
Commission requirements.  
  

There were no significant 
issues identified by the 
review  
  

None  

  

N/A  
  

1  

Charity 
Accounts – 
JW Shaw  

Corporate  To provide an independent 
review to Charity 
Commission requirements.  
  

There were no significant 
issues identified by the 
review  
  

None  

  

N/A  
  

1  

Charity 
Accounts – 
Stocks 
Massey 
Bequest  

Corporate  To provide an independent 
review to Charity 
Commission requirements.  
  

There were no significant 
issues identified by the 
review  
  

None  

  

N/A  
  

1  

Code of 
Conduct  

Monitoring 
Officer  

To complete a review on 
behalf of the Monitoring 
Officer in respect compliance 
with the Member Code of 
Conduct  

A recommendation was 
made to the Monitoring 
Officer  

None  N/A  N/A  

Write Offs for 
2020  

Corporate/  
Finance  

To audit the Council’s write-
off of debts for Q2 2020/21  

N/A  None  N/A  1  

Benefits 
Audit  

Finance   The purpose of this audit is 
to review controls in the 
payment of benefits. To 
ensure that the right benefit 
is paid at the right time  

There are adequate 
systems in place to 
minimise the possibility of 
the wrong amount of 
benefit being paid.  

None  N/A  1  

Overpayment 
of Benefits  

Finance To review the controls in the 
overpayments of Benefits 
system including 
classification and recovery. 

There are adequate 
systems in place to 
minmise overpayment 

An Overpayment policy should 
be produced and provided to 
all officers. 

June 2021 2 

Fraud Risk 
Assessment 

Corporate To inform Members of the 
current fraud trends that 
affects the public sector.   

No significant issues 
identified.    

None    None    N/A    

P
age 48



Appendix 1 

Appendix 1 - Summary of Audit reports Issued – 2020/21 
Audit Service  Audit Purpose Audit Opinion Key Actions Agreed Implementation 

Detail 
Score 

Select 
Licensing 
Account 
Incident 

Housing and 
Development 
Control 

To consider the allegations 
made in a complaint in 
respect of transactions on a 
Selective Licensing Landlord 
Application. 

There is no evidence of 
irregular activity within 
the landlord account. 

None N/A N/A 

Write-Off Q3 
2020-21 
Report 

Corporate/ 
Finance 

To audit the Council’s write-
off of debts for Q3 2020/21  

N/A None N/A 1 

Audit Score Defined 
 

Score Opinion Definition of Opinion 

1 Comprehensive 
Assurance 

There is a sound system of controls designed to meet objectives and controls are consistently applied in all the areas reviewed. 
 

2 Reasonable Assurance There is a good system of controls. However, there are minor weaknesses in the design or consistency of application that may put 
the achievement of some objectives at risk in the areas reviewed. 

3 Limited Assurance Key controls exist to help achieve system objectives and manage principle risks.  
However, weaknesses in design or inconsistent application of controls are such that put the achievement of system objectives at risk 
in the areas reviewed. 

4 No Assurance The absence of basic key controls or the inconsistent application of key controls is so severe that the audit area is open to abuse or 
error.  

N/A Not Applicable The audit review undertaken did not have as its primary objective an assessment of system, its controls and their effectiveness.  

 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Opinion - Appendix 2 – Progress Report 2021 
 

Audit  Started Report Issued Audit Score 

Corporate       

Annual Governance Statement     

NFI    

Charities     

J W Shaw    1 

Mayor's Charity    1 

Acorn Fund    1 

E Stocks Massey    1 

Debts Write-Off   1 

Fraud Risk Review     

Partnerships    

Strategic Partner Performance Indicators     

Personnel PIs    3 

Safeguarding     

Monitoring Office Report    

Finance & Property     

Benefits Calculations Check     

Final Accounts     

Payment of Benefits    1 

Treasury Management     

Payment of Creditors     

Council Tax     

Payroll    

Overpayment of Benefits   2 

Business Support Grants    

Information Governance     

IT Management     

Information Governance    

Achieve CRM    1 

Housing & Development Control    

Empty Homes Initiative    

Selective Licencing Account    

Legal & Democratic Services    

Electoral Registrations    

Green Spaces & Amenities    

Vehicles and Plant     

Economy & Growth    

Vision Park Project    

Streetscene    

Urbaser - Waste Contract     
Page 51



Taxi Licensing   1 

Other    

Burnley Leisure SLA     

 

Page 52



ITEM 
NO 

[AgendaItem] 

 

Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 

 

REPORT TO AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 

DATE 07/07/2021 

PORTFOLIO 
Resources and Performance 
Management 

REPORT AUTHOR Salma Hussain 

TEL NO 01282 425011 Ext 3152 

EMAIL salmahussain@burnley.gov.uk 

 
 

PURPOSE 

 
1. To present the Annual Governance Statement to the Audit and Standards Committee for 

approval. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
2. That the Committee approve the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 (Appendix A). 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
3. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 states that the Annual Governance Statement 

must be approved by a committee.  This responsibility is undertaken by the Audit and 
Standards Committee under their terms of reference, as those charged with governance. 

 
 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS 

 
4. The production of an Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement of the 

Council. In January 2021 the Audit & Standards Committee was informed that the Annual 
Governance Statement would be produced in accordance with proper practice using 
guidance from CIPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) and 
SOLACE (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives). 
 

5. All Heads of Service and key officers have provided signed Assurance Statements to the 
Chief Operating Officer and the Chief Executive in accordance with the organisational 
management structure. These have been supported by a control and risk self-
assessment questionnaire, updated to consider any impact of the pandemic. The Chief 
Operating Officer has considered his statements and signed an Assurance Statement to 
the Chief Executive.  

 
6. All Executive Members and Chair of Scrutiny were asked to complete a self-assessment 

questionnaire and provide a signed Assurance Statement to the Leader of the Council. 
 

7. The strategic partner, Liberata is also required to submit a Certificate of Assurance 

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



 

 

covering the services they provide on behalf of Burnley Borough Council.  This has been 
received and no issues have been reported. 
 

8. This process allows the identification of the key elements of governance and internal 
control for incorporation into the Annual Governance Statement and is designed to assist 
the identification of significant control and governance issues.  Minor weaknesses in 
governance have been identified and actions to address these issues have been put in 
place. 

 
9. Management Team have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement. The Statement 

was then signed by both the Council Leader and the Chief Executive as the final 
assurance to the public. These signatures will be updated once again as it is presented 
alongside the externally audited Statement of Accounts 2020/21. 

 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION 

 
10. None 

 
 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
11. None 

 
 

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 

 
12. None 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
13. None 

 
 

FURTHER INFORMATION       

PLEASE CONTACT:      Salma Hussain Ext 3152 

ALSO:      Ian Evenett Ext 7175 

 
 

Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



ITEM 
NO 

[AgendaItem] 

 

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\9\AI00017941\$wy1obn1f.docx 

Strategic Risk Register Update 

 

REPORT TO AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

 

DATE 07/07/2021 

PORTFOLIO Resources & Performance Management 

REPORT AUTHOR Ian Evenett 

TEL NO 01282 425011 Ext 7175 

EMAIL ievenett@burnley.gov.uk 

 
 

PURPOSE 

 
1. To Review and Update the Strategic Risk Register. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
2. That the Strategic Risk Register is reviewed and updated. 

 
3. That the Committee recommend the Strategic Risk Register to the Executive. 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
4. To ensure that Risks are appropriately monitored and recorded. 

 
5. The register is updated for the revised Strategic Objectives.  

 
 

SUMMARY OF KEY POINTS 

 
6. Attached a revised Strategic Risk Register. The change is highlighted in the draft and 

reported below. 
 

7. Failure to respond to widespread illness 
 
This risk has been rescored to 3 impact and 2 likelihood and score as a 6, medium risk. 
This was 3 impact and 3 likelihood and score 6, high risk. The impact of variant strains 
has been added as a trigger. The responses have been revised to include the response 
to surges in infection and to include isolation payments.  
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS AND BUDGET PROVISION 

 
8. None 

 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



 

D:\Burnley\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\4\9\AI00017941\$wy1obn1f.docx 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

 
9. This is part of the Risk Management and Corporate Governance approach for the Council 

 
 

DETAILS OF CONSULTATION 

 
10. None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
11. None 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION       

PLEASE CONTACT:  Ian Evenett Ext 7175 

ALSO:  

 
 

Page 66



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Burnley Borough Council

Strategic Risk Register

18 June 2021

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 1 of 17
Page 67



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Strategic Risk Register Summary
ID Risk Description Risk Score

1 Financial stability 9

6 Inability to deliver the regeneration programme 9

9
Risks in responding to demographic changes and increased 

deprivation
9

4 Changes in the political landscape 6

5 Changes in national policy/legislation 6

8 Inability to influence key decision makers 6

10 Workforce, skills and capacity challenges 6

14 Failure to respond to a widespread illness 6

2 Maintaining Partnership Performance 4

3 Damage to the Council’s reputation 4

7
Inability to drive improvements through information 

technology
3

11 Malicious Attack 3

12 Safeguarding Failure 3

13 Environmental Event 3

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 2 of 17
Page 68



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Prioritization Matrix

3 4, 5, 10 1, 6, 9 Red High

2 2, 3 8,14 Amber Medium

1
7, 11, 12, 

13
Green Low

1 2 3

3 Virtually Certain

1 Low

2 Medium

3 High

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Impact

Likelihood Impact

1 Very Unlikely

2 Likely

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 3 of 17
Page 69



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 1 Financial stability
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 3 Score 9 High Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Head of Finance & Property

PF2 - We will adopt a Medium Term Financial Strategy that will put the Council on a sustainable 

financial footing. This strategy will set the framework for preparing annual budgets, ensuring the 

annual budget strategy is set within the context of the longer-term outlook.  

Further funding cuts

Income loss (C19)

Insufficient financial controls

Expensive decision making

External cost pressures

Price or Interest Rate Increases

Political growth

Failing to understand the financial problem

National Economic Changes (C19)

Claims against the Council

Organisational sustainability

Reduced service delivery

Reduced customer satisfaction

Reduced reserves

Overspends

Damaged credit rating

Damage to reputation

Workforce morale/planning/retention

Reduced reputation for financial management

Central Government Intervention

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. 

PE4 - We will work on the wider determinants of poor health and will deliver our COVID-

19 community recovery plans 

PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

PF4 - We will deliver our Organisational Development strategy, ensuring we plan for the structures 

and capabilities that the organisation needs, and empowering our workforce to deliver the objectives 

of the Strategic Plan. This will include embedding hybrid working patterns where this improves PL6 - We will invest in our heritage assets for the benefit of this, and future, generations. 

PR5 - We will support UCLan’s expansion, transforming Burnley into a University Town

PR6 - We will delivery our COVID-19 economic recovery plan. 

PE2 - We will continue to develop the leisure and cultural offer of Burnley in partnership with Burnley 

Leisure.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 4 of 17
Page 70



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 2 Maintaining Partnership Performance
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 2 Likelihood 2 Score 4 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Management Team

PE2 - We will continue to develop the leisure and cultural offer of Burnley in partnership with Burnley 

Leisure.

Procurement method

Supply chain failure

Commissioning ‘v’ traditional culture

Political Change

Poor implementation

Compliance/Legal

Business continuity

Transformational cultural change not achieved

Poor or weak contract management 

Partner failure or withdrawal

Reduced service delivery

Reduced customer satisfaction

Political or reputation embarrassment

Perceived council failure

Poor co-ordination of existing providers and 

systems

Poor relationships

Increased costs

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PE1 - We will work with partners to make the borough a place of aspiration, including supporting 

efforts to increase education attainment and skills development.

PR5 - We will support UCLan’s expansion, transforming Burnley into a University Town

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. 

PE3 - We will work with partners to provide necessary support systems to reduce homelessness and 

to end rough sleeping in the borough.  

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

PL3 - We will work with partners to improve the quality and choice in the borough's housing stock.

PL4 - We will implement our 2015-25 Green Space Strategy.

PR3 - We will deliver the Town Centre and Canalside Masterplan, and strategic projects in Padiham 

Town Centre.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 5 of 17
Page 71



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 3 Damage to the Council’s reputation
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 2 Likelihood 2 Score 4 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Executive Officer

PF2 - We will adopt a Medium Term Financial Strategy that will put the Council on a sustainable 

financial footing. This strategy will set the framework for preparing annual budgets, ensuring the 

annual budget strategy is set within the context of the longer-term outlook.  

Service failure

Loss of key staff

External events

Customer Satisfaction not maintained

Partner failure or withdrawal

Strategic plan delivery problem

Credibility of the leadership (both political and 

officer)

Low morale

Loss of key staff

Recruitment and retention issues

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. 

PR1 - We will contribute to the strategic direction of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships, and 

will position the borough for economic development investment

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

PE4 - We will work on the wider determinants of poor health and will deliver our COVID-

19 community recovery plans 

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 6 of 17
Page 72



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 4 Changes in the political landscape
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: People Performance

Impact 2 Likelihood 3 Score 6 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Executive Officer

PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

No overall control

Political instability

Poor member and officer relationships

Poor member and member relationships

Local Govt Reorganisation

Lack of strategic leadership 

Poor decision making

Impact on the Council’s reputation

Loss of influence with key partners

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PE1 - We will work with partners to make the borough a place of aspiration, including supporting 

efforts to increase education attainment and skills development.

Other Work

Council Constitution

PE4 - We will work on the wider determinants of poor health and will deliver our COVID-

19 community recovery plans PR4 - We will implement the Local Plan, delivering new housing, employment sites, and infrastructure.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 7 of 17
Page 73



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 5 Changes in national policy/legislation
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Prosperity

Impact 2 Likelihood 3 Score 6 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Management Team

PF4 - We will deliver our Organisational Development strategy, ensuring we plan for the structures 

and capabilities that the organisation needs, and empowering our workforce to deliver the objectives 

of the Strategic Plan. This will include embedding hybrid working patterns where this improves 

New functions/loss of existing functions

Short term thinking

Lack of capacity

Changes from the withdrawal from the European 

Union

Changes from the devolution of Powers from 

Central Government 

Interest rate changes

Reduced control over what you do and how you 

do it

Inability to respond to the new agenda and 

continue with on-going functions

Exclusion from new or evolving regional and sub-

regional governance and operating structure

Not in a position to deliver new functions or 

requirements

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PR1 - We will contribute to the strategic direction of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships, and 

will position the borough for economic development investment

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 8 of 17
Page 74



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 6 Inability to deliver the regeneration programme
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Prosperity People

Impact 3 Likelihood 3 Score 9 High Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Strategic Head of Economy and Growth

PR2 - We will proactively support the borough’s businesses to innovate and expand, and make the 

borough a natural choice for business relocation

Economic downturn (C19)

Lending squeeze/Interest rate increases

Procurement failure

Regeneration funding priorities change

Changes in funding from Central Government or as 

a result of the withdrawal from the European 

Union

Inability of private sector partners to deliver

Delivery partner does not have the capacity to 

delivery

Delays in delivery of the regeneration programme

Damaged reputation

Increase programme costs

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PR1 - We will contribute to the strategic direction of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships, and 

will position the borough for economic development investment

PR3 - We will deliver the Town Centre and Canalside Masterplan, and strategic projects in Padiham 

Town Centre.

PR4 - We will implement the Local Plan, delivering new housing, employment sites, and infrastructure.

PR5 - We will support UCLan’s expansion, transforming Burnley into a University Town

PR6 - We will delivery our COVID-19 economic recovery plan. 

PL3 - We will work with partners to improve the quality and choice in the borough's housing stock.

PE1 - We will work with partners to make the borough a place of aspiration, including supporting 

efforts to increase education attainment and skills development.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 9 of 17
Page 75



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 7 Inability to drive improvements through information technology
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Performance

Impact 3 Likelihood 1 Score 3 Low Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Operating Officer

PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

IT partnership failure (to deliver past procurement)

IT partnership procurement failure

Current IT provision failure

Information governance failure

Cyber-attack

Inability to deliver and develop services and not 

deliver anticipated savings and service 

improvement 

	Public confidence in use of Council services 

through IT lowered

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. 

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 10 of 17
Page 76



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 8 Inability to influence key decision makers
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 2 Score 6 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Management Team

PL3 - We will work with partners to improve the quality and choice in the borough's housing stock.

Change of political control

Breakdown of key relationships

Change of staff/key relationships

Change in reputation for delivery

Loss of external funding opportunities

Reduced level of influence over key decision 

makers

Inability to deliver through partnerships

Reduced reputation of Council

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PE1 - We will work with partners to make the borough a place of aspiration, including supporting 

efforts to increase education attainment and skills development.

PR1 - We will contribute to the strategic direction of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships, and 

will position the borough for economic development investment

PR2 - We will proactively support the borough’s businesses to innovate and expand, and make the 

borough a natural choice for business relocation

PR5 - We will support UCLan’s expansion, transforming Burnley into a University Town

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 11 of 17
Page 77



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 9

Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 3 Score 9 High Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Management Team

Government policy

Economic downturn (C19)

Big ticket issues – crime, health, housing (C19)

Benefit dependency (C19)

Short term fixes

Negative reputation

Failure to develop opportunities

Local Infection Increase (C19)

Not delivering on the regeneration programme

Poor service delivery

Poor customer satisfaction

Low aspirations

Damage to reputation

Failure to improve

Increased demand

Increased costs

Less funding

Viability of Burnley

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PE1 - We will work with partners to make the borough a place of aspiration, including supporting 

efforts to increase education attainment and skills development.

PR4 - We will implement the Local Plan, delivering new housing, employment sites, and infrastructure.

Other Work

Community Hub

Risks in responding to demographic changes and increased deprivation

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

PL2 - We will improve the management and condition of private rented accommodation.

PL3 - We will work with partners to improve the quality and choice in the borough's housing stock.

PR1 - We will contribute to the strategic direction of local, sub-regional and regional partnerships, and 

will position the borough for economic development investment

PR2 - We will proactively support the borough’s businesses to innovate and expand, and make the 

borough a natural choice for business relocation

PL3 - We will work with partners to improve the quality and choice in the borough's housing stock.

PE2 - We will continue to develop the leisure and cultural offer of Burnley in partnership with Burnley 

Leisure.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 12 of 17
Page 78



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 10 Workforce, skills and capacity challenges
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 2 Likelihood 3 Score 6 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Executive Officer

PF2 - We will adopt a Medium Term Financial Strategy that will put the Council on a sustainable 

financial footing. This strategy will set the framework for preparing annual budgets, ensuring the 

annual budget strategy is set within the context of the longer-term outlook.  

Loss of the workforce

Loss of organisational memory

Loss of organisational skills

Lack of commitment to organisational 

development 

Lack of investment in training

Political direction change

Service failure/deterioration

Damaged reputation

Increased complaints

Low morale

Recruitment and retention issues

Increased workflow

Business resilience

Not having the right staff with the right skills

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. 

PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

PL4 - We will implement our 2015-25 Green Space Strategy.

PF4 - We will deliver our Organisational Development strategy, ensuring we plan for the structures 

and capabilities that the organisation needs, and empowering our workforce to deliver the objectives 

of the Strategic Plan. This will include embedding hybrid working patterns where this improves 

productivity. 

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 13 of 17
Page 79



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 11 Malicious Attack
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross-Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 1 Score 3 Low Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Operating Officer

Public Disturbance

National Risk Level

Lack of Stakeholder Engagement

Lack of Planning

Poor and delayed information and communication

Event Targeting

Cyber-attack

Death of Public / Staff

Loss of Assets

Major impact on Services and Community

Evacuation

Financial Cost

Reputational damage

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

Other Work

Business Continuity Plans 

Emergency Planning 

Local Improvement of Counter Terrorism Strategy (CONTEST) 

Event Planning 

Community Engagement 

Local Resilience Forum

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 14 of 17
Page 80



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 12 Safeguarding Failure
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 1 Score 3 Low Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Chief Executive Officer

PF4 - We will deliver our Organisational Development strategy, ensuring we plan for the structures 

and capabilities that the organisation needs, and empowering our workforce to deliver the objectives 

of the Strategic Plan. This will include embedding hybrid working patterns where this improves 

productivity. 

Weak or No response to reported issues

Historic issues which are identified

Safeguarding System Failure

Failure of Background Checks

Not recognising Safeguarding Risks

Injury to Clients

Resources diverted to address Risks

Major impact on Services and Community

Financial Costs

Reputational Damage

Central Government Action

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

Other Work

Safeguarding Policy 

Open and Transparent Culture 

Whistleblowing Policy 

Communications 

Corporate Complaints Process

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 15 of 17
Page 81



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 13 Environmental Event
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 1 Score 3 Low Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Head of Streetscene

PL1 - We will implement a range of initiatives to maintain a clean, safe, attractive and environmentally 

friendly borough. This will include a focus on reducing dog fouling.

Extreme Weather 

High Rainfall 

Heatwave 

Changing Climate 

High Snowfall 

Storms and Gales 

Flooding

Death of Public / Staff 

Loss of Assets 

Major impact on Services and Community 

Evacuation 

Financial Cost

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PL5 - We will prepare and deliver a new Climate Emergency Strategy.

Other Work

Business Continuity Plans 

Emergency Planning 

Event Planning 

Community Engagement 

Local Resilience Forum

PF1 - We will manage our contract with Liberata robustly, so it delivers value for money and 

good services. PF3 - We will develop our digital strategy, so that more residents transact with us online and we will 

continue to deliver services more efficiently.

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 16 of 17
Page 82



Burnley Borough Council - Strategic Risk Register  18/06/2021

Risk Ref: 14 Failure to respond to a widespread illness
Trigger or Cause Possible Consquences of Risk

Strategic Link: Cross Cutting

Impact 3 Likelihood 2 Score 6 Medium Priority Risk

Strategic Commitments

Lead Responsibility : Management Team

Other Work

Business Continuity Plans

Emergency Planning

Community Engagement

Local Resilience Forum

Transistional/Recovery Arrangements

Test/Trace/Vaccination/Isolation Payments/Cremation Services

Community Hub

Surge Strategy

PE3 - We will work with partners to provide necessary support systems to reduce homelessness and 

to end rough sleeping in the borough.  

PE4 - We will work on the wider determinants of poor health and will deliver our COVID-

19 community recovery plans 

Pandemic

Influenza

SAR

MERS

COVID

Local Infection Increase (C19)

Variant Strains

Death of Public / Staff

Major impact on Services and Community

Financial Cost

Event Closure

Buildings Closure

Business and Economy failures

Residual Risk 

Assessement

PR6 - We will delivery our COVID-19 economic recovery plan. 

Risk Score: 1 - 3 Low Risk; 4 - 6 - Medium Risk; 9 - High Risk Page 17 of 17
Page 83

ieven
Highlight

ieven_1
Highlight

ieven_2
Highlight

ieven_3
Highlight



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT & STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Work Programme 2021/22 

 

DATE OF MEETING AREAS TO BE CONSIDERED 

7th July 2021  Internal Audit Opinion 2020/21 

 Strategic Risk Register 

 Work Programme 2021/22 

 Annual Governance Statement 
2020/21 

 External Audit Progress Report -
Grant Thornton 

 

23rd September 2021  Standards Complaints Update 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 
2021/22 Q1 

 Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

 Strategic Risk Register 

 External Audit Progress Report  
2020/21 & Sector Update – Grant 
Thornton 

 External Audit Plan 2021/22– 
Grant Thornton 

 Work Programme 2021/22 

27th January 2022  Approve Audited Accounts 
2020/21 

 External Audit Progress Report 
2020/21 

 Annual Governance Statement 
2021/22 Arrangements 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 
2021/22 Q2 

 Fraud Risk Assessment 2021/22 

 Strategic Risk Register 

 Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act – Annual Return 

 Standards Complaints Update 

 Work Programme 2021/22 

17th March 2022  Internal Audit Progress Report 
2021/22 Q3 

 External Audit Plan 2021/22 

 Strategic Risk Register 2021/22 

 External Audit Progress Report 
2020/21 

 Annual Governance Statement 
2020/21 

Page 85

Agenda Item 11



 Audit Findings 202/21 and 
Annual Statement of Accounts 
2020/21 

 External Audit Annual Audit 
Letter 

 Work Programme 2021/22 

 

Page 86


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 External Auditors Progress Report
	Ext Aud June 2021 Lessons from Public Interest Reports in 2020_checked 0502FINAL (003)

	8 Internal Audit Opinion 2020-21
	Internal Audit Opinion Appendix 1 - Summaries of Work 2020-21
	Internal Audit Opinion Appendix 2 - Audit Plan Progress 2020-21

	9 Annual Governance Statement 2020-21
	AGS 20-21 Signed

	10 Strategic Risk Register 2021-22
	Strategic Risk Register Draft Jun 21

	11 Work Programme 2021-22

